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These notes on Fort Malden and the Tmm
of Amhersthurg were originally
the solicitation of _members of
Historical Society. Every available local ~4-u| ¢
of information was ext
Alre ml m arly all the old men whose memories
were upon for confirmation of fact and
detail uf historic incident are dead.
attempt was made to put the notes in
zine form inasmuch as there seemed to be
oecasion to draw attention to what had already
been written and to other available sources of
information, Hence the frequent and some
what copious quotation,
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FORT MALDEN

AND
THE OLD FORT DAYS
X XN X

Probably the reason why so many of the details of Canadian
history have been taken for granted by our history writers, or left
untold, is the circumstance that the archives of Biitamn and France
would need to be searched for fuller statement of fact,  One of the
events, whose scant recording is to be deplored, is the founding of
Fort Malden, at the mouth of the Detroit River and head waters
of Lake Erie. One sentence only have I found tonching its earlier
history prior to 1812, a sentence from the illustrated Atlas of the
Dominion issued in Toronto in 1881, It is this:—"for vears after
the treaty of peace had been signed at the close of the War of In-
dependence, the British still held the military post at Detroit; hut
in 1796 it was turned over to the Americans, and the British sel-
ected the site of Amherstburg, which hal been laid out as a town
the previous year, on which to erect a fort, and to this they re-
moved the guns and stores from  Detroit during the year 17496."
Mr. F. E. Elliott of the Point Farm immediately below the town,
is fully convinced however, from family reminiscences, that there
were fortifications here already when his grandfather, the late Col.
Matthew Elliott, came here in 1784, 1f the p ce of old In-
dian forts in the adjoining townships be an indication, the prob:-
bility is thathe is right.

But though little is found on record of its founding, its subse-
quent history is common property. Establishedin the early days
in anticipation of events, the events themselves at two important
points in our history, proved the utility of the step taken, for in
1812 and again in 1837-'38 there was war upon this frontier,

Amherstburg - the name then as now of the old fort town—
was the western centre of warlike demonstrations in the contest of
1812, though the seat of war was the whole Detroit River, on both
its banks. On the breaking out of the war Fort Malden was gar-
risoned by *‘200 of the gist, 50 of the Newfoundland company,
and 300 of the militia, with a detachment of Royal Artillery, be-
ing 600 men in all, **(Kingsford.) An old resident of the town is re-
sponsible for the statement, that for many vears subsequent to 1812
there were but ramparts here, and that the fort buildings were
erected only in 1839-40. But the number of men doing service un-
der Colonel Proctor in 1812 would seem to call for some further
explanation as to the available accommodations. It is hardly to
he supposed that regulars defending a strategic, fortified post,
would live out of doors in the fashion of their Indian allies.

Col. St. George was in command of Fort Malden when, on July
12, 1812, Gen, Hull crossed from Detroit to the Town of Samlwicﬁ
at the head of 2500 regulars of the American army. A few days
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It is said that the officers from the fort watched the progress
of the engagement from the Lake Erie shore in Colchester, elimb
ing the trees to get a better rang with their glasses. Doubtless
this is true.  The knowledge ained, taken together with facts
already related and other facts to he related, would go far to
account for what has been studiously represented as the very
precipitate action of Col, Proctor in blowing up Forts Malden and
Detroit and retreating into the interior. Tecumseh's wrath so
freely and forcibly expressed at the colonel's expense upon that
occasion may after all have lent undue color to the ignominy of
the retreat

General Harrison followed up the advantages gainel over the
Canadian forces at Fort Stephenson and Fort Meigs on  the
Maumniee, as was to be expected he would, bringing his forees
across the river and landing at Bar Point, from flat boats, Thence
he threw a detachment across Marsh Crees and, with colors flying
and to the strains of martial music, led his men along the two
sides of the Creek in the direction of Fort Malden. On the Ren
nolds farm, now owned by Mr. Edward Honor and Mr. Perry B
Leighton, just outside the limits of the town, he encountered the
pickets from the garrison and six men fell in the skirmish, It
would appear that the American forees camped upon  this ground
as though to await developments.  On Mr, Honor's farm there are
* earthworks to be seen, as plainly traceable as though they were
of yesterday, These were thrown up by General Harrison
A description of them will not be without interest e
Beginning at the line which now divides the two farms named and
on the elevatlon which bounds the marsh on east side and extending
sixty yards S. by E. to where the embankment begins to fall
away, is a double line of breastworks, formed by scooping ont the
earth from the face of the bank a few feet from its foot, and throw-
ing this earth uphill. By this means ample protection would be
afforded a double line of rifle-men, one above the other, lying prong
and ready to receive an enemy from the west.  From  the point
where the bank of the marsh begins to recede and to fall away the
earthworks extend due east some thirty yards, affording  protec
tion against an enemy from the north (or south) as well as ameans
of communication hetween the part of the earthworks first men
tioned and a third part extending sixty yards due south from the
east end of the second part. A very pretty piece of rapid, temmporary
work, A second skirmish followed in the neighborhood of  where
Mr. Wigle's flouring mill now stands, probably on the rising
ground. Then followed the disastrous retreat in which Proctor
was the determined and Tecumseh the unwilling  participant  and
which terminated in the {Battle of the Long Woods,

Thus have we, by the aid of readily accessible recordsand the
memories of men living, traced the history of old Fort Malden
from its earliest days up to the day it was blown up and complete-
ly abandoned, towards the close of the second year of the war of
1812-14. Only the earth works remained, destined to become the
scene of further military operations in the oncoming War of the
Rebellion of 1837-'38,

An incident well worthy of being reproduced is recorded in
the Dominion Atlas (1881) that shows the substantial and depend

* This information was given by Mr. Edward Honor who received it from
the late Pirish Barron. Mr. Barron's farm was near Bar Point in Malden
Township. He saw Harrison's soldiers land

{ Also known as the Battle of the Thames, and the Battle of Moravian
Town
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able spirit of Canadians. *“During the autumn of 1813, while the
British lay at Amherstburg, the men of Colchester and Gosfield
applied to Proctor for permission to go home and  harvest their
crops.  This was denied them, whereupon they left the camp in a
body, carrying their arms and accoutrements to their homes
Proctor sent  peremtory orders for them to return  at once, which
they answerel by saying they would return when their crops were
harvested and not before.  He therenpon sent a messenger to say
that he would send the Indians to bring either them or their scalps
into the British camp: to which they returned answer that in such
event they would teach both the Indians and the British some
more interesting game than they had yet learned from the Ameri-
cans, if he dared molest them. After this they were left to their
own way, and when their harvests were secured  they all returned
to the camp in a body as they had promised. During the furlough
they formed reliefs and worked by squads, first on the farm  of
one then on another, till all was completed, keeping guard
ainst any possible scalping expedition of the treacherous allies
of the British, The men carried their arms to the field with
them, and the little children were trained as videttes to watch
each road and path and forest trail *

There is but little on record of the now dismantled fort up to
the breaking out of the war of 1837-'38. The British were in  un-
disputed possession of the Canadian frontier during the interval
and the country immediately round about began to be settled up
and cleared of timber, In addition to the main-land, Bois Blanc
Island abreast of the town of Amhersthurg was (as it is to-lay ) Can-
adian territory, and was about to beconie the scene of considerable
military manoeuvring, There is much of romance about the early
history of the island, as there is indeed about its later history too;
but it is not with romance we are presently concerned, It was not
till the second year of the war of 1837-'3% that activities began
here again., At that date there was no garrison at the fort.  But
the zens and the farmers of the adjoining townships had not
forgotten, some the actual training in the field, the others the
memory and inspiration, of the war of 1812, They now mustered
in defence of their country to the number of some two thousand
strong. It was on Bois Blanc the enemy first songht a footing,
thinking to approach the town under cover of the magniicent
woodls that then clothed the island. Ah me! What goings and
comings has not that pretty, sheltered stretch of water been the
pathway of that laves the foot of all these pretty islands from Fl-
liott's Point acrossto Gibralter, Grosse Isle, Hickory, Sugar Island
and Bois Blanc. By this way escaping slaves have won  across to
freedom’s country in the dead of night! What contraband goods
have come and gone this way! Here went the checking party in
1812, Tecumseh of their number, and came back victorious! Hith-
er came the invading enemy in 1838—and fled precipitate!
Bravo! Canadian volunteers ; the enemy never finds you «-}V your
guard!

Had it not been for the American war schooner that patrolled
the channel between Bois Blane and Amherstburg, cannonading
the town, the tragi-comedy of 1838 might have turned out more
seriously for us than it did. The party that crossed over to the
island on the 8th of January of l'h:ll year to repel  the invaders
might possibly have themselves been repelled. But when the guns
on the American schooner began their booming up the river our
men recrossed in safety and awaited their opportunity, Having
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volunteers from Windsor under Baby, But these were not engaged
At daybreak Captain Glasgow of the artillery corps swept the
enemy from their island lodgement from across the water, .mwll with
only three guns. Subsequently the defeated insurgents were
disarmed and dispersed by the American authorities,

On these two oceasions during this war our American neighbors
did us the good office of relieving our enemies of their arms in
their last extremity, and did themselves a good turn by dispersing
a body of malcontents whose presence now within their borders
boded the country no good

In March, 1538, Awerican sympathizers made another attemm
to take Canada, this time way of Pelee Island.  About four
hundred men mustered on the island with this object They
were not permitted to reach the main shore. British troops, con
sisting of five companies of regulars, with about two hundred
wilitia and Indians, under command of General Maitland, made a
descent upon the island, defeated the self-styled patriots killing
about sixty of them and making prisoners of nine - Gen, Suther-
land being one of the prisoners, and left the balance of the rebel
force to their fate.” (Read.) There is a difference of opinion
as to where and exactly when this notorious character, Sutherland
was taken prisoner. The other account, and the one which 1
believe to be authentic is related to me by different parties long
resident in Amhersthnrg and hereabout, and confirmed by Alex
ander Callam, Esq., a gentleman now over ninety vears of age, the
oldest resident of them all.  He relates that Col. Prince took the
two rebel generals prisoners on the ice as he returned from the
routing of the rebels on Pelee Island; that they were not on the
island, but heard of the gathering of the insurgents there and
were crossing over on foot from their forlorn headquarters on
Sugar Island, Mr, Callam had himself crossed the ice on the same
day, but from the direction of Monroe in Lower Michigan, and
saw the two men at Amhersthurg in Col. Prince’s charge, who
claimed the honor of their capture personally,

Still another attempt was made to invade Canada, this time by
an attack upon Windsor, and again the regulars from Fort Malden
and the Essex militia gave a good account of themselves, A
detachment of Royal Artillery under Col. Broderick came to the
assistance of the militia already on the ground and drove the in
vaders back across the river.  Col. Prince says in his report of this
attack upon Windsor:—“Of the brigands and pirates twenty-one
were killed, besides four who were brought in just at the close and
immediately after the engagement,—all of whom I ordered to he
shot on the spot ; and it was done accordingly.” It was the exe-
cution of these four men that afterward brought such a storm about
the ears of Col. Prince on the floor of the House of Commons.,
But, as Mr. Read has it, “Col. Prince’s justice had a salutary and
deterrent effect, there were no more rui»aa after Windsor."” Were
it permissible to put into print some facts in the case as related to
him by an okl member of the 34th regiment and vouched for by
him, every Britisher would applaud Col. Prince for the summary
justice meted out to the four fiends, on the same principle that
punitive expeditions are sent out by the British Government to-day
and approved by all,

Col. Rankin, of subsequent local fame, then but a youth of
twenty-two, an officer of militia under Col. Prince, captured the
colors of the insurgents at the battle of Windsor, and was compli-
{ Governor Tom Mason
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tUme to time demanded.  *The latter were, when embodied with

the garrison, in essential particulars considerel on the same foot
ing with the regular troop (Vide Lieut.-Gov. Gore to James
Baby, 28th Dec, 18 alian Archives.n The j3rl Light
Infantry were h after the rehellion, Col. Booth in
command ;  Ser Furlong, second in command. Next
detach the Sgth i which hal heen
statione | at Montreal after returning from the West Indies in "jy
of all came three companies of the Royal Canalians.  Thest
were transferred in 1851, after which (ate no regalar garrison was
stationed at the fort

Forty and odd years ago there were 109 Dritish ar
ers at Amherstburg  {But two or three of these are left Sergt

Sullivan, alredy namel, is anthority for lhv 1ent that the
resident pensioners were enrolle! to do  neces after th
removal of the Royal Cana lian Rifle l'w Ive 1 were on
guard, chosen from the alphs llnlh roll. Each twe serve |

month, and were relieved ln\ other twelve. For this service each
man was pai 1 one half dollar a day in aldition to his pension, On
the Queen's birthday a review was hell solong asa gnard was
maintained, and on this occasion each man received a sovereign

The Royal Canadians, the last detachment that garrisone
the fort, was made up of men of 14 years' service in the British
army - goodd conduct men.  Soldiers might volunteer from any
regiment, in Canala, at home or abroal

The 34th Regiment had been stationed at Halifax previons to
the breaking out of the rebellion in 1837, at whieh time orders were
issued to proceed to Quebee, by ship to | shn's, thence overland
Mr. Gott, who has heen already named meinber of the 31th,
has a very distinet recollection of the movements of the reginent
Between St John's and Quebec there was considlerable conntermarch-
ing. At Quebec, the regiment was ordered to march to Toronto, do
ing duty as they went. At Toronto the order was issuel to march
immediately to Amhersthurg,  From Port Stanley to Fort Mallen
the distance was covere ] by boat, and the long anl weary march
was ended, but not the work. The bastions at the fort were rebuilt
and the fortifications got in good repair. Nor was there aiy to
much time to get the fort in realiness, for the regiment il nn
reach Amherstburg till the early part of '38, and that was the
rebellion year in this part of the country, A letter datel at
Amhersthuryg \\n,n\l 7th, 1807, from Lient.-Col. Grant to Military
Secretary ives a description of the fort that might
almost 18 u»nnll),' from the pen of the commanding
officer in 1838 : There are four bastions, one at each angle, but
one is unserviceable and excluded from the wor The pic I-uuu"
is entirely decayed and fallen down.”  (Canadian Archives, series
C, vol. 973, p. 106.)

The defence of the fort in 1838 consisted of ten 24-pounders,
six 6-pounders, three brass field pieces,six mortar guns and a num-
ber of rocket tubes, besides the full complement of small arms.
There is at the present time plainly visible the well defined outline
of a mortarbed in the only remaining trench, the one on the north
side of the works. Another of the mortar batteries was imme-
diately in rear ofiwhere the last of the old flagstaff still stands on
the rear of the southwest bastion, The two front bastions are well

* Sergeant Sullivan, who belonged to the g3rd, w the informant,

{ One of these is Mrs, Bridget Horan who nursed the wounded British
soldiers at the Crimea, along with Florence Nightingale

1




precerved, the angles Leing as arp as the day they were built
U n the east side of the fort there was a double defence formed by
two rows of pointed pickets, one on the moat outside the trench
and the other on the inver side of the trench. The sally-port
1 this east trench alongside the east bastion. This is doubt
less the bastion that was spoken of in 1807 as unserviceable and
excluded from the works, It was of different form from the others
in 1838 But the trenches on the east side have been filled in and
the bastions levelled in the construction of a roadway
In 1838 the buililings, ete., in connection with the Fort were
all located along the river front fro'n where the Post Office now
is, northward, This was the government woodyard ; and from
this point, from south to north in the order named, were the com
missary department (a part of the old brick building is still stand
, the dock yards and government stores, the hospital and the
officers’ quarters. Part of the foundation of the old King's wharf
is still traceable The root-house also which helong to the
officers’ quarters is still a substintial building. It stands on
the old Leol homestead. The space between the officers
quarters aad the southwest bastion of the Fort was protected by a
row of pickets, as was also the space between the two front
hastions not otherwise protected by trench or moat
map of the Town of Amherstburg drafted by R. J. Pilk-
ington and bearing date 3rd June, 1831, indicates that the military
reserve or garr,son common embraced all the territory between
Richi St., the then northerly boundary of the town and the
Gorden Farm on  the north side, and between the Bell Farm
on the eost and the Detroit River westward. The part of this
territory of which most use was made prior to the advent of the
pensioners was west of the Sandwich road and south from the fort
to Richmond $t. The territory east of the Sandwich road was
afterwards apportioned to the pensioners, The government built the
liouses on the apporti grounds, charging the pensioners fjo
piece for them, deduc the money in 1 amounts from the
pensions till the total was made up, Besides the land grant and
the regular pension and the perquisites already named in another
part of this record, each pensioner was given a government cheque
for £10 on coming here, to enable him to make a start in his new
home. The ex-Collector of Customs at this port was then in busi
ness in the town, and says that he has cashed a goodly number of
these cheques
A part of the defense not yet specified was the block-houses
on Bois Blane Island. There were three of them, known as the
north, centre and south block-houses, or No. 1, No. 2 and No. 3.
The south block-house still srands as in the old days. The one at
the north end was burned some twenty-six years ago. The centre
one stands on the west side of the island and is embodied in the
Col. Atkinson summer residence About opposite to it, on the east
side of the island, and abreast of Richmond street, there was a
Picket Barracks, long afterwards used as a dwelling, but not now
standing. One of the numerous lake captains residing in Amherst-
burg still recalls the incidents of a happy boyhood spent in and
around the old Barracks after it had degenerated into the common-
place civilian's house.
*Many of the old farms hereabouts, like these twe
the names of their first owners

are still called by




